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o ‘OAK MORTGAGE (OMPANY, LLC

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND ORDER

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, acting through the Departinent of Banking
(“Department”), Bureau of Examinations has conducted an examination of Oak Mortgage
- Company, LLC (“Oak Mortgage”) and its officers, employees and directors, Based on the
results of its review, the Bureau of Compliance, Investigation and Licensing (“Burean”)
- concluded that Oak Mprtgage operated in violation of the Mortgage Licensing Act, 7 Pa. C.8. §
6101 e seg. The parti¢s to the above captioned matter, in lieu of litigation, hereby stipulate that
the folléwing statemen(s are true and correct in the settlement of the above-captioned matter and,
intéhding to be legally bound, hereby agree to the terms of this Consent Agreement and Order
(“Order™), |
BACKGROUND
1, The Department is the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s administrative agency

-éufhorii.ed and empowered to administer and enforce the Mortgage Licensing Act.

2. The Bureau is primarily responsible for administering and enforcing the Mortgage

" Licensing Act for the Department,
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11. First,

Oak Mortgage js a mortgage lender with its principal place of business located at

e 101, Marlton, New Jersey (08053,

Oak Maortgage engages in the mortgage loan business in the Commonwealth and

usiness is licensed, Mortgage Lender License No. 22529 and Nationwide

stem and Registry Identification (“NMLS”) No. 138879,

Oak Martgage also has a branch office at 180 Tuckerton Road, Suite 17, Medford,

edford Branch™).

nrtgage lender, Oak Mortgage must “[m]aintain supervision and control of
he acts and omissions of all mortgage originators” that it employs, See 7
(emphasis added).

{ Oak Mortgage’s originators violate any provision of the Moﬂgage
ortgage is respoﬁsible for their conduct.

sust 2, 2010, the Bureau of Examinations commenced an examination of
incipal place of business.

aminer found several violations of the Mortgage Licensing Act.

rpose of this Order to resolve all issues arising from the August 2, 2010

VIOLATIONS

Unlicensed Branch Office

the examiner found that approximately 47 loans were originated for

Pennsylvania COI}SUIIJIBI‘S by one mortgage originator employed by Oak Mortgage to originate

" loans from the Medfo

rd Branch between January 1, 2009 and September 22, 2010,




~ .consumer, in writing,

i L ‘Licensing Act,

12. Althoug

the mortgage originator was licensed by the Department, the Medford

- Branch was not license .

13,

- and work ouf of a licensed location of the employer licensee, . .

14, By assi
- location, Oak Mortgag
15, | Second,

" consumers the disclos
- completed a mortgage

16, The Mo
‘ - nonrefundable.” See 7 1
17. By failis
" which fees are nonre
18.  Oak Mo
the pipsline during thd

- policies and procedures

The Mortgage Licensing Act requires mortgage originators to

“[ble assigned to
" See 7 Pa. C.8. § 6131(D)(2).

ing its mortgage originator to originate loans from an unlicensed
violated Section 6131 H(2) éf the Mortgage Licensing Act.

Advance Fee Disclosure Form

the examiner found that Oak Mortgage did not provide Pennsylvania
ure form notifying them of which fees are nonrefundable when they
oan application,

rigage Licensing Act provides that “[t]he licensee shall disclose to the
at the time of a loan application which fees paid or to be paid are
Pa, C.8, § 6121(10),

18 to notify the consumers, in writing,

at the time of a loan application

fundable, Oak Mortgage violated Section 6121(10) of the Mortgage

rtgage immediately provided all affected consumers whose loans were in
examination with the required notification and it updated its company

to aid in ensuring that this requirement is met prospectively.




Unique Identifier Missing from Applications

19.  Third, the examiner found that Oak Mortgage did not require its mortgage

‘otiginators o clearly display their NMLS unique identifier number on the mortgage loan

applications that they offiginated.

20.  Mortgage originators must “clearly display” their unique identifier on “all

- mottgage loan application forms and personal solicitations or advertisements, including business

- cards,” See 7 Pa. C.8. §6121(14).

21, By failing to require its mortgage otiginators to clearly display their unique

 identifiers on the mortbage loan applications, Oak Mortgage violated Section 6121¢14) of the

: _Mbrtgagé Licensing Adt.

Advertising
22.  Fourth, fthe examiner found that Oak Mortgage advertised its mortgage loan
business on several wabsites, brochures and mailers but did not disclose in the advertisements

- that it was licensed by the Department.

23.  Further,/Oak Mortgage’s mortgage originators did not display their NMLS unique

. identifiers on their personal mortgage originator websites,

24, The Mortgage Licensing Act requires each licensee to include “in all
advertisements language indicating that the licensee is licensed by the department. In the case of
& mortgage originator, all advertising shall include the name of the mortgage originator’s

| employer and the mortgage originator’s unique identifier.” See 7 Pa. C.S. § 6135(a)(5).

25. By failing to indicate that it is ficensed by the Department on its website,

brochures and mailers and by failing to require its morigage originators to display their unique



- ’ - identifiers on their personal websites, Oak Mortgage violated Section 6135(a)(5) of the Mortgage
' Li(iensing Act,

Display Mortgage Licenses

26.  Fifth, the examiner found that Qak Mortgage was not displaying copies of

: .'}_icensees as required by the Mortgage Licensing Act.
27.  Oak Mo tgage did not display a copy of its inortgage lender license at its principal

_place of business,
28.  Further,|Oak Mortgage did not display copies of its mortgage originators’ licenses

. in the locations where the originators were assigned,

- 29. Finally, |Oak Mortgage’s originators did not keep a copy of their licenses

(inclﬁding the wallet-sized license) in their immediate Possession when engaging in the mortgage

- loan business,

30, TheMo Ltga.ga Licensing Act provides that:

A licensge who is a . . . mortgage lender , , . shall conspicuously display,
at each licensed place of business, its license and copies of the licenses of
: S - all mortgage originators assigned fo that location, A licensee who is a
S mortgage originator shall keep the ficense in the immediate possession of

the licenisee whenever the licenses is engaged in the mortgage loan
business

- See7Pa.CS. § 6135(a) (1.
| - 31. By failing to display its mortgage lender license, its mortgage originators’ licenses
--and by failing to requite its originators to possess a copy of their license when engaging in the

B mortgage loan business, Oak Mortgage violated Section 6135(a)(1) of the Mortgage Licensing
. s Act,




. that “one individual fi

- mortgage loan correspo

32, . Sixth, th

 licensed office (aside fr

Continning Bducation — Non Mortgage Originator
> examiner found that Oak Mortgage did not have one individual at each

ym the licensed mortgage originators) complete eight hours of continuing

. education required by tHe Mortgage Licensing Act,

33, Section

‘hours of education prog;

34. - By failin
of continuing education
- with Section 6131.1(d)
35.

Seventh,

~card mailer advertising

- applicable federal law.
| 36. . The post

* The mar

am urgi

opporty

p131.1(d)(1) of the Mortgage Licensing Act provides, in relevant part,
om each licenséd office of a mortgage broker, morigage lender, or
ndence that is not a mortgage originator. . . shall complete at least eight
rams....” See 7 Pa. C.S. § 6131.1(d)(1).

g to have one individual from each licensed office complete eight hours
that is not a licensed mortgage originator, Oak Mortgage did not comply
1) of the Mortgage Licensing Act. |

Federal V_iolations

the examiner found that Oak Mortgage’s mortgage originator sent a post

its mortgage loan services but did not include information required by

card provided, in relevant part, that:

ket has recently dropped and mortgage rates are at historic lows. I
ng all of my clients to take advantage of this once in a lifetime
ity. Ihave clients refinancing into 15 year loans in the low 4%

range. New home buyers in the upper 4% range on 30 year mortgages.

Call me
to hearit
37. TheTr

closed-end credit:

téday to find out how much money you can save. I look forward
g from you soon,

th in Lending Act (Regulation Z) requires the following when advertising




(©) Advertisement of rate of finance charge. If an advertisement states a
rafe of finance charge, it shall state the rate as an ‘annual percentage
Fate,’ using that ferm. If the annual percentage rate may be increased afier
consummation, the advertisement shall state that fact. . ., . If an
advertisement is for credit secured by a dwelling, the advertisement shall
not statejany other rate, except that a simple annual rate that is applied to
an unpajd balance may be stated in conjunction with, but not more
conspicuously than, the annual percentage rate,

(d) Advertisement of terms that require additional disclosures —

(1) Triggering terms. If any of the followin g terms is set forth in an

advertisgment, the advertisement shall meet the requirements of paragraph (d)(2)
of this section; :

@ Tihe amount or percentage of any down payment,
().  The number of payments or period of repayment.
(iif) " The amount of any payment,

(ivy  The amount of any finance charge,

_ (2) Additional terms. An advertisement stating any of the terms in paragraph
R  {d)1) ofjthis seetion shall state the following terms, as applicable . . . . ‘

)] The amount or percentage of the downpayment.

(ii) 'he terms of repayment, which reflect the repayment obligations over the
' :%nll term of the loan, including any balloon payment.

(iii) he ‘annual percentage rate, using that tertn, and, if the rate may be

ihcreased after consummation, that fact,

- See 12 CFR. § 226.24{c)-(d)
e 38, Here, the advertisement set forth a period of repayment, either 15 or 30 years, as

o _set forth in (d)(1)(iiD) thus, the advertisement shouid have contained the additional terms

o required by (d)(2).
-39, However, the advertisement did not use the terms “annual percentage rate” nor
-.,:.-did it set forth the amtunt or percentage of the down payment or the terms of repayment; as a

o o _' result the advertisemerﬁ did not conform to the requirements of 12 C.F.R. §§ 226.24(c), (d)(2).




. with all applicable Feq

"' - mortgage licensing bus

. . cettified check or mon

.. Investigation and Licg

“-C Harrisburg, PA 17101,

40.  Section

feral law, including the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (88 Stat.

1724, 12 US.C. §§ 26¢
- seq.) and the Rqual Crg

!

By failit

. Pa.CS$. § 6121(3) (em
41,
| .- Mortgage violated Secti
:42. - The Dep
C 5 6138(a)4).
© 43, The Dy
-+ Licensing Act “up to $]

3

44.  Fine. W

6121(3) of the Mortgage Licensing Act requires licensees to

“lelomply

I ¢t seq.), the Truth in Lending Act (82 Stat, 146, 15 US.C. §§ 1601 ef

dit Opportunity Act (88 Stat. 1521, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1691 et seq.).” See 7
hasis added).

1g to comply with the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z), Oak

on 6121(3) of the Mortgage Licensing Act.

AUTHORITY

artment has the authority to issue orders for the proper conduct of the

ness and the enforcement of the Mortgage Licensing Act, See 7 Pa, C.S.

sartment has the authority to fine licensees that violate the Mortgage

0,000 for each offense.” See 7 Pa C.S. § 6140(b).
RELIEF

ithin 30 days of the effective date of this Order (as defined jn Paragraph

51), Oak Mortgage shall pay the Department a fine in the amount of $17,400 remitted by

.: shall be sent to the

ey order made payable to the Department of Banking. The fine payment

attention of Non-Depository Institutions, Bureau of Compliance,

nsing, Department of Banking, 17 North Second Street, Suite 1300,

\



45, Correctis

. -._‘-51), Oak Mortgage shall;

&,

=

/e Action, Upon the effective date of this Order (as defined in Paragraph

“1

| <qu1re its mortgage loan originators to work from locations licensed by

the Depattment as required by 7 Pa. C.8, § 6131(f)(2); and

P ov1de Pennsylvania consumers, at the time they complete a mortgage

2

f—

van application, the disclosure form notifying them of which fees are

nonrefundable as required by 7 Pa. C.S. § 6121(10); and

o]

quire the mortgage originators that it employs to cleatly display their

NMLS unique identifier on any mortgage loan applications that they

<

omplete and in all advertisements and solicitations, including business

rds and their personal websites, as required by 7 Pa, C.S. §§ 6135(a)(5),

L)
—8

[,

121(14); and

[

isclose that it is licensed by the Department in its advertisements

[

ncluding, but not limited to, its websites, brochures and mailers as
equired by 7 Pa. C.8. § 6135(a)(5); and

display its mortgage lender license at its principal place of business; and
display -its mortgage originators’ licenses in the locations where the
originators are assigned to engage in the mortgage loan business; and
require its mortgage originators to keep a copy of their licenses in their
immediate possession when engaging in the mortgage loan business as

tequired by 7 Pa, C.8. § 6135(a)(1); and




;

h. require one individual that is not licensed as a mortgage originator to

complete eight hours of continuing education at each licensed location as

required by 7 Pa. C.S. § 6131.1(d)(1); and

-
(]

isure that all advertisements contain the disclosures mandated by

o

pplicable federal law (including 12 C.F.R. § 226.24) as required by 7 Pa.
8. §6121(3),

[

FURTHER PROVISIONS

46. -  Congent| Oak Mortgage hereby knowingly, willingly, voluntarily and irrevocably
. .con;sents to the entry of this Order putsuant to the Bureau’s order authority under the Mortgage
- Licensing Act and agrees that it understands all of the terms and cénditions contained therein,

- Oak Mortgage, by voly ntarily entering into this Order, waives any right to a hearing or appeal

. -conceming the terms, conditions and/or penalties set forth in this Order.
47.  Publication. The Deiaartment will publish this Order pursuant to its authority in
. Section 302.A.(5) of the Depaﬁment of Banking Code. 71 P.S. § 733-302.A.(5).
| - 48.  Entire Algreement. This Order contains the whole agreement between the parties,
:There are no other tefms, obligations, covénants, representations, statements, conditions, or
.':'othem'ise, of any kind whatsoe_ver concerning this Order. This Order may be amended in

- writing by mutual agrée,:ment by the Bureau and Oak Mortgage.

49, Binding|Nature, The Department and Oak Mortgage intend to be and are legally
_‘bound by the terms of this Order.

50, . Counsel. This Order is entered into by the parties upon full opportunity for legal

- advice from legal coungel.




Effective

51.
become effective on the

- 52

RSO0

ness. Oak Mortgage hereby stipulates and agrees that the Order shall

date that the Bureau executes the Order.

Other Enforcement Action.

a,
all statutes, rules and
regél;ding all matters ng

b, G

upon the Department

he Department reserves all of its rights, duties, and authority to enforce
regulations under its jurisdiction against Oak Mortgage, in the fut&re
t resolved by this Order.

ak Mortgagé acknowledges and agrees that this Order is only binding

pnd not any other local, state or federal agency, department or office

regarding matters within this Order.
53. Authorization. The parties below are authorized to execute this Order and legally

bind their respective parties.

. 54,

.facsimile or electronic
55. Titles.

convenience of referen

Counter

parts,  This Order may be executed in separate counterparts and by
mail in portable document format “PDF.”
The titles used to identify the paragraphs of this document are for the

be only and do not control the interpretation of this document.




WHEREF()RE, in consideration of the foregoing, including the recital patagraphs, the
Coﬁﬁnonwcélth of Pennsylvania, Department of Banking, Bureau of Cémpliance, Investigation
and Licensing and Oak Mortgage Company, LLé, intending to be legally bound, do hereby

;' execute this Consent Agreement and Order.
D .. FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

i+ .- DEPARTMENT OF BANKING, BUREAU OF
/.. COMPLIANCE, INVESTIGATIONAND LICENSING

.- John T ofai, Bfiforbeme&t Administrator
woo BT of Compliance Investigation and Licensing
~- Dh _uroment of Banking

‘ ”-;.."Date: 6 ~7 *Pp [

.

- ~ FOR OAK MORTGTALGE COMPANY, LLC

: : ":EOfﬁcer Signature) ]

SR ) -EPrint Officer Name) l

L (Tley U ¢4 ; .
 Date: @//’7//29// - ‘-




